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● (1105)

[English]
The Chair (Angelo Iacono (Alfred-Pellan, Lib.)): I call the

meeting to order.
[Translation]

Good morning, colleagues.
[English]

Today is meeting number 25 of the Standing Committee on Envi‐
ronment and Sustainable Development.

This meeting is taking place in a hybrid format and is in public.

We are meeting with the Honourable Julie Dabrusin, Minister of
the Environment, Climate Change and Nature, for one hour. Gov‐
ernment officials will remain for the second hour.

Time permitting, the committee will consider amendments or
recommendations to the bill at the end of testimony, at the will of
the committee, if necessary.

The committee has also scheduled Tuesday, February 24, as a
day for considering amendments or recommendations to Bill C-15.

I would also like to take a few minutes, in the second hour, to is‐
sue drafting instructions to the analysts for the report on the electric
vehicle availability standard.

For those attending in person, please follow the health and safety
guidelines, per the cards on the table, to prevent audio feedback in‐
cidents.

I have this little yellow card to give you a heads-up on how much
time you have left for speaking. Once I turn it over, please kindly
end your sentence.
[Translation]

The committee is beginning its study on the subject matter of
clauses 595 and 596, found in part 5, division 42 of Bill C‑15, an
act to implement certain provisions of the budget tabled in Parlia‐
ment on November 4, 2025.
[English]

This morning, Minister Dabrusin is accompanied by, from the
Department of Environment, Alison McDermott, assistant deputy
minister, strategic policy and international affairs branch; Megan
Nichols, assistant deputy minister, environmental protection
branch; and Stephanie Lane, executive director, legislative gover‐
nance.

Minister Dabrusin, you have up to five minutes. The floor is
yours.

Thank you.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin (Minister of the Environment, Climate
Change and Nature): Thank you so much, Mr. Chair.

I'd like to begin by acknowledging that we are gathered on the
unceded territory of the Anishinabe Algonquin Nation.

I'd also like to take a moment before I begin my formal remarks
to acknowledge the tragic news we have heard from Tumbler Ridge
and from Kitigan Zibi.

As someone who has had a mass tragedy occur in my own com‐
munity along the Danforth, I know how much it means when we
can see people from across the country lean in and show strength in
a time of grieving. I really want to thank everyone around this ta‐
ble. I know we've all come together to show support for the com‐
munity. I want to say that my heart is with the victims, the sur‐
vivors and all the people who have lost loved ones they are grieving
today. May their memories be a blessing.

[Translation]

Today, I will speak to the proposed amendments to the Canadian
Environmental Protection Act, 1999, or CEPA, contained in part 5,
division 42 of Bill C‑15.

[English]

CEPA is cornerstone federal legislation for preventing pollution
and protecting the environment and human health. It enables feder‐
al action on a wide range of environmental and human health risks,
from chemicals and waste to air and water pollution.

It also supports collaboration across governments through mech‐
anisms such as administrative and equivalency agreements.
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[Translation]

Administrative agreements are work-sharing arrangements be‐
tween the Minister of the Environment and other governments in
Canada, including indigenous partners. They can cover inspections,
enforcement, monitoring, reporting and coordinated responses to
environmental incidents, such as oil or chemical releases.

These agreements are already in place in several provinces and
territories and help streamline oversight while strengthening public
safety.
[English]

Equivalency agreements are a long-standing feature of CEPA.
They allow the federal government to stand down certain federal
regulations where another government's laws are equivalent.

Over the years, the federal government has entered into such
agreements with provinces, including British Columbia, Alberta
and Saskatchewan, notably for oil and gas methane regulations.
[Translation]

These agreements reduce regulatory duplication and allow indus‐
try to comply with a single, tailored regulatory system.

Part 5, division 42 of Bill C‑15 proposes targeted amendments to
clarify and improve the operation of these provisions.

First, these amendments would remove the five-year statutory
limit on administrative and equivalency agreements. This would
provide greater flexibility, reduce unnecessary renegotiation and
support stable, long-term intergovernmental co-operation, while
creating more predictable conditions for industry to invest in clean
technologies.
[English]

Second, the amendments would clarify that another government's
provisions must be—I'm putting this in quotes just to be clear—
“equivalent in effect” to CEPA regulations, codifying existing prac‐
tice. These changes would apply prospectively, meaning that cur‐
rent agreements would continue under their existing terms.
[Translation]

Together, the amendments strengthen CEPA as a practical, co-
operative tool for environmental protection.
[English]

I'd like to now briefly turn to the climate competitiveness strate‐
gy. Launched in budget 2025, the strategy supports emissions re‐
ductions while strengthening Canada's economic position through
clear, predictable rules that attract investment and drive innovation.
Progress is already under way. In December, the government re‐
leased a discussion paper on targeted amendments to the clean fuel
regulations, with consultations concluding in January. Once final‐
ized, these amendments would strengthen Canada's low-carbon fuel
sector while maintaining core emission reduction objectives.

The strategy is also delivering results across major industrial
sources. Enhanced methane regulations for the oil and gas sector
and new methane regulations for landfills were finalized last year in
close partnership with provinces. Under the Canada-Alberta memo‐

randum of understanding, Canada has committed to entering into a
new agreement that would stand down federal methane regulations
in favour of an updated Alberta provincial regime.

Carbon pricing remains a central pillar of this approach. It is the
most cost-effective way to reduce emissions while encouraging in‐
novation and efficiency, positioning industry to make the best
choices as Canada builds and decarbonizes. Importantly, proceeds
from industrial carbon pricing are reinvested directly into Canadian
industry. As of 2025, the decarbonization incentive program has
supported over $874 million in investments across 53 clean energy
projects.

Finally, Chair, because I know that time is close, clean, reliable
and affordable electricity is essential to achieving net zero by 2050.
The government is investing billions to unlock investment and
make it more attractive to build on our clean power advantage.
We're working with provinces and territories to advance a net-zero
electricity grid supported by significant investment tools, including
the Canada Growth Fund and clean economy investment tax cred‐
its, which, I would point out, are in this budget implementation act.

Mr. Chair, I would be pleased to answer questions from the com‐
mittee.

● (1110)

The Chair: Thank you, Minister.

[Translation]

We'll begin with the Conservative Party for six minutes.

[English]

Mrs. Anstey, the floor is yours.

Carol Anstey (Long Range Mountains, CPC): Thank you,
Minister.

Thank you for appearing today.

I also appreciate the leverage that the committee has given us to
address any concerns we have.

Minister, in light of the recent announcements around Chinese
EVs, I'm curious. Will you personally be permitted, under current
federal security guidance, to drive a Chinese-manufactured electric
vehicle, yes or no?
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Hon. Julie Dabrusin: First of all, I think we should place this
within the larger automobile strategy, which was a great news an‐
nouncement that we had last week for industry and for environ‐
ment.

Carol Anstey: But—
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: No, I will answer your question. I am hap‐

py to purchase any EVs that are available on the market in Canada.
Carol Anstey: Does that include Chinese-manufactured EVs,

Minister?
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I would purchase any EV that's available

for purchase in Canada at the time that I would purchase it.
Carol Anstey: So there is no security risk for any Chinese EV

manufactured in China.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: No, and I will go on to add that we're talk‐

ing about also investing in building EVs here in Canada.
Carol Anstey: Thank you, Minister.

I'm also curious about what coordination your department has
undertaken with Public Safety Canada, Innovation, Science and
Economic Development and the Privacy Commissioner to assess
cybersecurity, data sovereignty and national security risks associat‐
ed with connected vehicles in general.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: To be frank, this would be part of ISED.
ECCC is not working on connectivity science, but I can assure you
that as a whole—

Carol Anstey: It's relevant, though, Minister, because we're
opening this up now. You're responsible for these electric vehicle
mandates and you're responsible for these electric vehicles coming
into Canada. With all respect, they do collect a lot of personal in‐
formation. I'm curious to know, since you are the minister responsi‐
ble, whether you have coordinated with these other departments as
a way to protect Canadians.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: Let me back that up for two seconds, be‐
cause you used the word “mandate”.

In fact, if you were listening to the announcement last week, one
of its really important pieces is moving to GHG regulations. It's
how we're moving forward. That's the first part I just wanted to
clarify.

Carol Anstey: Sure.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: Second, of course, as a whole-of-govern‐

ment approach across all of our ministerial offices, we are working
to make sure Canadians have access to the best and most affordable
vehicles, and, frankly, to support our auto workers right here in
Canada, because they build the best vehicles.

Carol Anstey: I appreciate that, Minister, but I'm speaking
specifically about security. I think that's also an important part of
the conversation.

I'm just wondering if you could address it from that perspective.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: Let's also take a moment for history here.

These vehicles were available in Canada previously. I think it was
up to 2021. The numbers we are talking about bringing back into
Canada would match those numbers. They're a cap number.

● (1115)

Carol Anstey: It's not important, then. Is that the short answer?

It's okay. I can move on.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: Okay. I'm happy if you want to move on,
but I think my main point is that all vehicles sold in Canada are ve‐
hicles that we are absolutely comfortable with and that we believe
Canadians should have access to.

We're talking about affordability and vehicles being built right
here in Canada, which is the main motivation for the work we're
doing to support our auto workers. We are also encouraging invest‐
ments in that industry at the same time.

Carol Anstey: However, Chinese EV manufacturers are receiv‐
ing massive state subsidies to expand globally. Has your depart‐
ment assessed whether this strategy could result in Canada becom‐
ing dependent on this foreign-controlled vehicle technology and
software?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: As I mentioned earlier, the number of ve‐
hicles that would be brought in from China is capped.

Also, the most important part of the announcement we made was
auto strategy. It was being cheered by auto workers on the floor. We
are putting into place a suite of measures that will encourage in‐
vestment for vehicles built right here in Canada. As an Ontario MP,
that is something I know is so important to our economy.

Carol Anstey: Yes, that's fair enough. However, that doesn't
mean we just turn a blind eye to the security risks. I think, as re‐
sponsible parliamentarians, we need to ask that question. It's some‐
thing the government should be taking seriously. The Canadian
government had a very different position on this just a few years
ago, and now it seems as if it's not at all a concern.

Therefore, I just want to be sure, based on that, where you stand
on this, because I think it's an important question.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I believe I have answered it, now, in many
different ways, many times. I am comfortable with any vehicle that
will be sold here in Canada.

I have never seen the Conservatives support any EVs, any manu‐
facturer of EVs or any affordability in getting these vehicles to
Canadians, which Canadians want. Globally, one in four vehicles
being sold right now is an EV. Why would you hold us back from
that?



4 ENVI-25 February 12, 2026

Carol Anstey: I'm not suggesting that we hold you back. I'm
suggesting that we're responsible in the way we roll these out, and
that we make sure we're protecting Canadians. I'm not suggesting
that we don't move forward, Minister, with all due respect, but—

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: [Inaudible—Editor] actually moving for‐
ward on getting EVs built here in Canada and making sure that
Canadians have rebates to buy those vehicles and that we have af‐
fordable vehicles.

Carol Anstey: My time is up.
The Chair: Go ahead with one last comment. I'm being flexible

today.
Carol Anstey: It's okay. I'm fine.
The Chair: Thank you very much.

[Translation]

Mr. St‑Pierre, go ahead.
[English]

Eric St-Pierre (Honoré-Mercier, Lib.): Thank you.

First, Minister, thank you for acknowledging Tumbler Ridge yes‐
terday. It's been a very difficult moment for everybody, including
me. I have two young daughters of six and 10, so thank you for ac‐
knowledging the tragic losses and the hard time Canada is going
through right now.

Second, despite the obstructive behaviour of the opposition, I
would like to congratulate you on the auto strategy. Our committee
has been doing a lot of work around the EV availability standard,
and a lot of the findings.... Actually, one from our colleague was
about the lack of charging infrastructure in Newfoundland, which
our government is addressing with a $1.5-billion loan through the
Canada Infrastructure Bank.

I just want to commend you for the very exciting auto strategy
announcement last week.
[Translation]

I will continue in French, if I may.

You've also appeared a number of times before the Standing
Committee on Environment and Sustainable Development, so thank
you for your generosity.

I'll ask you a question about the topic we're discussing today,
clauses 595 and 596 of Bill C‑15.

How do you think these clauses can contribute to better air quali‐
ty and a healthier and less toxic environment?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: Thank you for the question.

I also thank you for your first comment. This is an opportunity
for all of us in Canada, whether we have children or not, to reflect
on the impact of violence in our communities.

With respect to your question on Bill C‑15, it's about finding
ways to work better with provinces and territories to make sure that
the policies we have in place are working well. We have a very
large country, and things can work differently in each region.
Therefore, it is very important to be able to enter into equivalency

agreements with the provinces to ensure that everyone can achieve
common objectives at the same time. Everyone has the same goals
and wants to achieve them, but the best ways to achieve them may
differ from one region of the country to another. The amendments
proposed here are intended to facilitate negotiations and equivalen‐
cy agreements.

I would say that it goes even further. Currently, these agreements
can last up to five years. This means that we have to restart negotia‐
tions every time, which is a lot of work. The ability to enter into
longer-term agreements will help us have agreements that work bet‐
ter, and it will be less wasteful. I'm sorry, I'm trying to find the
word in French.

A voice: There will be less waste.

● (1120)

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: That's it, thank you.

Eric St-Pierre: I know the regulations are fairly technical, but
can you talk about the positive effects these changes would bring?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: First, as I said, one of the big changes has
to do with the duration of agreements. Previously, each agreement
could last a maximum of five years, which meant that negotiations
had to begin again with the province or territory very shortly after
the agreement was concluded.

Let's take the example of the clean electricity regulations, certain
provisions of which will come into force in 2035. If the negotia‐
tions started now, the agreement would end before 2035. So it's a
matter of finding ways to work with the provinces to achieve long-
term objectives. Certain provisions of these regulations are expect‐
ed to come into force as late as 2050. The possibility of having
longer-term agreements will help us better plan with the provinces
and territories. In addition, we'll waste less time constantly starting
negotiations all over again.

Eric St-Pierre: You previously mentioned the methane regula‐
tions, which require a lot of collaboration with the provinces.

With regard to the amendments proposed here concerning equiv‐
alency agreements, you talked a bit about the collaboration between
the federal government and the provincial governments, but regard‐
ing clauses 595 and 596, could you comment on the work you're
doing to keep the dialogue going with the provinces and give us
some examples of your approach?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: The story on methane is so important, as
it's an area where we can significantly reduce greenhouse gas emis‐
sions. In fact, the regulations we implemented in December will re‐
duce emissions in Canada by 400 megatonnes. So that's a big
change.

That said, to better continue this work, we have agreements that
have already been reached with the provinces on other regulations,
and that helps us operate better.

Let's take the example of Alberta, with which we had a methane
equivalency agreement.
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[English]

They overperformed.
[Translation]

So that enables the province to work based on the way things op‐
erate in its region, and we've achieved very good results for the
country.

The Chair: Thank you, Minister.

Thank you, Mr. St‑Pierre.

Mr. Bonin, you have the floor for six minutes.
Patrick Bonin (Repentigny, BQ): Thank you for being here to‐

day, Minister.

I have a few things to discuss. I'll start by following up on the
issue of Chinese electric vehicles.

The Bloc Québécois has introduced a bill to prevent products
made using forced labour, particularly child labour, from entering
Canada. We have a number of concerns about what's happening in
China right now.

Have you looked at that bill? Do you think it would be worth‐
while for Canada to have assurances that these vehicles are not
made using forced labour?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: There are two things I would say about
that.

First, in Canada, we have significant protections for workers.
When we talk about attracting foreign investment here, we're al‐
ways talking about how we're going to continue not only to protect
these workers, but also to have good wages for them.

On the one hand, our government already has policies to verify
how things work in certain countries and to ensure that there are
protections. It's always important to think about that, around the
world.
● (1125)

[English]

We have a human rights approach.
[Translation]

On the other hand, it's important to ensure that we have good
jobs here in our country and that we protect our workers.

Patrick Bonin: I was really talking about vehicle production in
China. The bill we introduced aims to ensure that there is no forced
labour, particularly for children. Currently, there is no such measure
on the federal side.

Will you at least commit to looking at the bill and telling us
whether it's a measure that Canada would like to implement?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I'm always prepared to look at what you
are proposing, and I think everyone here around the table agrees
that we need to protect workers around the world, but especially….

In short, yes, I am prepared to look at that.
Patrick Bonin: Okay. We'll wait for a response from you on

that.

In terms of vehicles, there are currently barriers to the entry of
European electric vehicles, including the fact that safety standards
aren't considered equivalent. That is one of the reasons why we
have fewer European vehicles here in Canada, compared to what
they have in Mexico or elsewhere in the world.

Can you assure us that this measure will be corrected to allow
European electric vehicles to enter the country?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I would like to begin by reminding you of
what we have done. There are the Chinese vehicles you're talking
about, but there's also everything we're doing to better build the ve‐
hicles here. On the affordability front, we've reintroduced the elec‐
tric vehicle rebate, making it easier for Canadians to buy electric
vehicles. That's what we're doing when it comes to affordability.
We're trying to build those vehicles here and we're offering a re‐
bate.

We're also trying to reach agreements so that more businesses
can set up here. Affordability is important, but we also need good
jobs. So I'm also interested in how we can make sure we build
those vehicles here.

Patrick Bonin: However, when it comes to importing vehicles
more specifically, are you aware of the fact that the entry of a num‐
ber of European vehicles is blocked because of safety standards that
aren't considered equivalent?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I don't know if it's a matter of safety or if
it's more a matter of how European countries calculate greenhouse
gas emissions.

Once again, when we talk about vehicle affordability, I'm think‐
ing of the people who work at Bécancour, for example, who will
build vehicles here in Canada. I want to make sure that we have
good jobs here in Canada to build the vehicles of the future. We
have a good industry, as evidenced by the Bécancour example. So
it's a matter of finding ways to work better to ensure that, in addi‐
tion to thinking about affordability by offering rebates.

Patrick Bonin: Will you commit to looking at the standards with
Transport Canada, among others, to ensure that vehicles produced
in Europe have access to Canada right now?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I would say that how it's going to be im‐
plemented and how it's going to work is more a Transport Canada
issue.

What I'm saying is that, as a government, we'll look at affordabil‐
ity by offering rebates and figuring out how to build those vehicles
here in Canada.

Patrick Bonin: I would have liked you to commit to talk to your
colleague at Transport Canada about this because it's an important
issue.
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You're talking about jobs. The situation is currently critical for
Lithion, which is the only lithium battery recycling plant in Que‐
bec. However, it could close its doors and even be liquidated as
soon as tomorrow. The company is applying for a $30‑million loan
so it can continue to operate. As things currently stand, the batter‐
ies, which contain critical minerals, will be sent to the United
States. It's a recycling issue. It's an important link in the chain.
There was a $2‑billion critical minerals fund in the last budget.

Are you concerned by the fact that we are at risk of losing this
Quebec flagship?

Do you expect your government to act by tomorrow?
● (1130)

The Chair: The time is up, but I'll let you to answer, Minister.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I would like to answer that it's important

to support industries, and this bill provides for investment tax cred‐
its and other tools to help industries, whether in the critical minerals
sector or the manufacturing sector. I hope the Bloc Québécois will
support us.

The Chair: Thank you.
[English]

Ellis Ross (Skeena—Bulkley Valley, CPC): Thank you, Mr.
Chair.

Minister, thank you for coming.

My colleague here asked about the security risk in terms of Chi‐
nese-manufactured EVs. Even my colleague from the Bloc asked
the same question. It's unfortunate that our Liberal members of this
committee find that discussion point destructive, when other coun‐
tries around the world have made it clear that they will not allow
Chinese-manufactured electric vehicles near their governmental op‐
erations or military bases. I think this is important. We're talking
about the ability to extract data from a country—especially since,
as we all know, China and Russia are actually contemplating get‐
ting through the Northwest Passage in Canadian sovereign waters
in the Arctic.

I'll ask you a direct question. In terms of your mandate and
bringing in EVs from China, has the issue of security ever been on
your desk?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I will respond by saying that if the Con‐
servatives really cared about security issues, they would make sure
their leader got the security clearance to be able to get this informa‐
tion.

Ellis Ross: Wait a minute. I'll tell you what—
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I mean, you're asking about security is‐

sues. I'm answering about security.
Ellis Ross: You're politicizing an issue. You know for a fact that

if he did get the security clearance, we would not be able to ques‐
tion these issues. On behalf of Canadians, on behalf of our riding
members, we have to hold government to account.

It's a clear question: Has the issue of security ever been across
your desk in terms of acquiring at least 50,000 manufactured EVs
coming from China?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: There are two things. My work, as the
Minister of the Environment, is on parts like the regulatory piece on
EVs that we've just talked about.

However, let me say the second piece: Absolutely, if your party
cared about knowing about security risks, your leader would get the
clearance. Every other leader has gotten that clearance.

Ellis Ross: So the issue of security with Chinese-manufactured
EVs has never come across your desk. You've never talked about it.
It's never been brought to your attention.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: What I am saying, sir, is that if you actu‐
ally want to keep coming to me about security issues—

Ellis Ross: I'm just asking a simple question.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: —there is a way for your party to get the
information you want.

The leader of the Bloc, the Prime Minister, the leader of—

Ellis Ross: I'm not in charge of buying 49,000 EVs from China.
It's on everybody's mind in terms of Canadian sovereignty, in terms
of security and in terms of espionage.

Has the issue of security ever come across your desk, as a talking
point even, in terms of purchasing 49,000 EVs from China?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: Look, I'm not the Minister of Public Safe‐
ty. As I said, I'm the Minister of the Environment. My work—

Ellis Ross: So it's no.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: Actually, it's a day for our country to cele‐
brate that we have an automobile strategy that will make sure Cana‐
dians have access to the vehicles that are being purchased right
around the world while reducing emissions and while building a
strong industry right here in our country.

Ellis Ross: Okay. I'll tell you what; I'll give you the benefit of
the doubt that, yes, it's not your file. I'll assume that your answer is,
no, it's never come across your desk. I will forward this question to
the appropriate minister.

Thank you.

● (1135)

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: As soon as he gets his security clearance,
he can get these answers.

Ellis Ross: I have another question, about the oil emissions cap.
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Thank you for the answer to my question, by the way. I submit‐
ted a question to your department on whether or not LNG Canada
phase two would be subject to the national oil and gas emissions
cap. Your answer was pretty much similar to your opening state‐
ment, but curiously, your last paragraph basically said that the oil
and gas emissions cap would not be implemented if the Alberta
MOU was successful.

Can you give me a timeline on when some type of comparable
emissions plan will be made public to replace the oil and gas emis‐
sions cap nationally?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: It was in our budget 2025, and it was very
clearly in the climate competitiveness strategy, that for certain
pieces—this is based on expert advice we received from environ‐
mental experts—if we have strong, enhanced methane regulations
and if we have strengthened industrial carbon price and carbon cap‐
ture, there would be a path to not needing to go forward with an oil
and gas emissions cap.

We are currently working on strengthening the industrial carbon
price. I hope the Conservatives will support us. It's a great econom‐
ic initiative. It helps our industries right here in Canada. We have
put in place enhanced methane regulations. We are continuing to
work. Right in this budget implementation act is support for carbon
capture. I'm hoping you will support that.

Ellis Ross: The way I read it is that the timeline will be based on
an application being made for a pipeline being built to the west
coast of British Columbia, and then the clock will start ticking to
see if the Alberta MOU actually precedes it. That's when the com‐
parable emissions caps will be considered to replace the national
emissions cap.

The Chair: Minister, I'll allow you a short answer.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: It was fairly clearly set out in the budget.

The wording is very clear. I set it out myself, and I do not agree
with the paraphrasing that's been proposed by the member opposite
there.

The Chair: Thank you, Minister.

Thank you, Mr. Ross.

Mrs. Miedema, the floor is yours for five minutes.
Shannon Miedema (Halifax, Lib.): Thank you very much.

Thank you for being here, Minister.

I, too, would like to offer congratulations on our auto strategy.
Not only do I think it's a really wonderful path forward, but I also
think it's another example of the way our government is trying to
really consider environment and climate issues and address the cri‐
sis across all of the major work we're doing across all of the depart‐
ments. I've heard you say before that when the environment and cli‐
mate become part of the thinking across all departments and all
ministers, this is how we actually get things done.

I saw first-hand, and drove first-hand, that very thing in Halifax
when I was working as the director of environment and climate
change for the city. The way we saw progress, buy-in and momen‐
tum really involved all departments and just making it a necessary
consideration across all major work.

I give you huge congratulations on that.

[Translation]

I will ask my first question in French.

Clauses 595 and 596 would make it easier for provinces, territo‐
ries and indigenous governments to manage regulations without
those regulations having to be completely identical to those in
CEPA.

What are the benefits of co-operative federalism, where the fed‐
eral government gives more decision-making power to the various
levels of government?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: First, I'm very pleased that you used some
of your time to talk about everything you've done for the environ‐
ment in your work in Halifax. It had an impact. I saw it myself,
when I was parliamentary secretary and we were there to set up
charging stations, among other things. I also saw the work that was
done to improve the energy efficiency of buildings.

It's important to see how we need to work, and your question
kind of illustrates what this is about. It's not just about the federal
government. We need to work with other governments to get re‐
sults. We have to accept that things are different in different parts of
the country and facilitate co-operation.

When we can enter into an equivalency agreement with a
province, that means that the province has the same objectives and
wants to achieve the same end result, but perhaps it will do so in a
slightly different way.

The changes we are proposing in this bill will give us more flexi‐
bility to conclude these agreements. As I said earlier, the provinces
have to achieve the same end results, but perhaps they will have an‐
other way of getting there.

Something that is very important for us is the fact that these
agreements could last longer than five years. Right now, we can on‐
ly implement five-year agreements. This means that, shortly after
we have reached an agreement, we have to start negotiations again.
It wastes a lot of time and energy, and it doesn't allow us to do
long-term planning.

So the changes proposed in this bill will help us work better with
the provinces and reach agreements that allow for long-term plan‐
ning.

● (1140)

Shannon Miedema: Thank you.

[English]

It sounds like it's being optimized and it's more efficient, and it
sounds like we're reducing red tape and being more flexible. It all
sounds like great news, especially from a government perspective.
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Extreme weather events are having a major impact, as we all
know, on the well-being of our communities across Canada, includ‐
ing Halifax and Nova Scotia. Our committee has recently been con‐
ducting a study on the impacts of extreme weather events driven by
climate change. This is focused mainly on the insurance industry,
but also on the very real impacts of extreme weather on all Canadi‐
ans.

How is our government taking action in the budget implementa‐
tion act to combat increased extreme weather?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: It's very important that you're highlighting
the fact that climate change is real. I'm not trying to say this in a
light way. Communities are feeling the impact right now.

There are two pieces. One, how do we fight climate change and
its continued impacts? Two, how do we help Canadians manage
through this and be able to adapt?

In fact, I believe I was with you in Halifax when we announced
that we were helping municipalities, including smaller municipali‐
ties, to come up with those plans so they can better protect them‐
selves and plan for the future.

Those are very tactile projects that help small communities right
across our country, and it's important that we continue to do that.

The Chair: Thank you.
[Translation]

Mr. Bonin, you have the floor for two and a half minutes.
Patrick Bonin: Mr. Chair, I would like to ask my colleagues if

they agree to give one minute of our speaking time to our hon‐
ourable colleague from Saanich—Gulf Islands, who is here. I am
prepared to do so, but I would like to know if my colleagues are, as
well.

The Chair: You can use your time as you wish.
Patrick Bonin: Okay, but I am asking my colleagues if they are

in favour of this proposal.

The Liberals are in favour of it.

Are my Conservative colleagues in favour of it?
The Chair: Again, you can use your time as you wish. You don't

need anyone else's permission to do that.
Patrick Bonin: I see that my Liberal colleagues are in favour of

it. That's great, thank you. I hope it will be done.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Minister, on the finance side, we've heard about the increase and
the extension of the carbon capture and sequestration subsidies in
the last budget. It's an additional $3 billion by 2035 for oil and gas
companies, among others.

Do you have the same number as I do, in terms of additional
funding for these subsidies?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: There's the investment tax credit for car‐
bon capture, but there's also one for clean electricity.

Patrick Bonin: Okay, but I'm talking about capture.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: This is the first time we'll have a—

Patrick Bonin: How many billions of dollars are we talking
about?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: —investment tax credit for clean electrici‐
ty. That's a big thing for Quebec and for Hydro‑Québec.

Patrick Bonin: Is $3 billion the number you have, as well?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: What I would say is that it's very impor‐
tant that we have the support of the Bloc Québécois to pass this bill.
That way, we can have a clean electricity system.

Patrick Bonin: Is it indeed $3 billion?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: The amounts for all that are in the docu‐
ments you have.

Patrick Bonin: Okay. So you are confirming that it is $3 billion.

Have you calculated how much the agreement between Canada
and Alberta represents in terms of reducing greenhouse gas emis‐
sions compared to the regulations in place, particularly with regard
to methane, emissions caps and clean electricity?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I'm very glad you asked me that question,
as it's not a step backwards. We're going to do something new. It's
an equivalency agreement, and that's exactly what we're talking
about today. When we enter into equivalency agreements with
provinces, they have to demonstrate that they will achieve the same
results. They just have another way of getting there.

● (1145)

Patrick Bonin: So you're telling me that an additional pipeline
with a capacity of 1 million barrels a day, or 300,000 barrels a day
in the case of the TMX project, while taking into account the delay
in reducing methane emissions, will produce equivalent results.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: There is no delay in reducing methane
emissions. As I said, we have methane regulations, which were fi‐
nalized in December, and we think they will reduce methane emis‐
sions by 62%. Then, on the other side, we have other measures that
we need to have.

I know you always like to talk about pipelines. Recently, we saw
that the Parti Québécois passed a resolution saying that it would not
ban pipelines—

Patrick Bonin: Minister, I'll give my last minute to Ms. May.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: —so I don't know if you agree with the
Parti Québécois.

Patrick Bonin: I'll give you the rest of my time, Ms. May.
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[English]
Elizabeth May (Saanich—Gulf Islands, GP): Thank you to my

colleague Patrick Bonin of the Bloc Québécois.

Hello, Minister.

I don't like omnibus bills. This one is enormous, at over 600
pages. I'd been reading for quite a while when I wondered why the
International River Improvements Act is being amended, and why
the Canada Wildlife Act is being amended. Why is the Migratory
Birds...? I was finally, of course, able to trace it down to the fact
that we're creating a new tribunal, the Environmental Protection
Tribunal. It is hard to read word for word through 600 pages. I al‐
most missed division 5. We'll talk about that some other day.

We've had experience with the Canadian Environmental Protec‐
tion Act for about 30 years, and now we're creating something
called an Environmental Protection Tribunal and wrapping up a
role we're familiar with in terms of chief review officers.

I wonder how this will affect judicial reviews. We've had—
The Chair: I'm sorry. You'll have to come up with a question for

a short answer.
Elizabeth May: The question is why. What's the background?

What's the rationale for the Environmental Protection Tribunal, and
will it be a quasi-judicial body?

The Chair: Give a short answer, Minister.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I'm pretty much out of time, but I'll say

that we continue to remain strong on the Canadian Environmental
Protection Act and on our wildlife protections.

I'd be happy to talk with you further off-line when we're done.
Elizabeth May: Thank you, Patrick.
The Chair: Thank you, Minister.

Thank you, Ms. May.

Mr. Bexte, the floor is yours for five minutes.
David Bexte (Bow River, CPC): Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, witnesses, for attending today.

I find it frustrating coming to committee sometimes, especially
when divisive, evasive comments come from the minister.

I have a question related to plastics and the recent changes.
You've labelled plastic straws, utensils and bags as toxic. Why is it
okay for Canada to make plastic bags and straws and send them to
other countries, export them for good economic reasons, but it's not
okay for Canadians to use them?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: First, let me say that we recently had a de‐
cision from the Federal Court of Appeal that actually supported
something that the Conservatives have fought us on all along, by
the way, which is not only that plastics can be toxic to the environ‐
ment but also that the federal government has the ability to be in‐
volved in it.

David Bexte: I understand that, but why are you allowing the ex‐
port of products that we can't use here at home?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: To continue, because this is shocking
news that now the Conservatives are actually supporting having a
listing of plastics as toxic, I have not heard that support—

David Bexte: I'm wondering about the regulatory hypocrisy. It's
something that we've been using domestically and globally for a
long time, safely, hygienically. These are wonderful products. All
of a sudden, we can't use them in Canada. Now the government
does a backflip, and we export them for economic reasons, but we
can't use them at home. Why?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I'm really pushing back on the first part of
your question, to start with. I think the Federal Court was quite
clear that the sea otter choking on a plastic straw isn't going to care
about its chemical composition. I think we have seen, and Canadi‐
ans have seen—

David Bexte: That's a mechanical risk, not a toxic risk. You're
obfuscating.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: The court actually found it was a toxic
risk. That was actually their finding.

David Bexte: Interesting.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: The thing is, beyond that piece, I think
that most Canadians—

David Bexte: Why are we exporting them?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: What I would say on that piece—but I'm
celebrating the first part, the part about us having taken these steps
on plastics—

David Bexte: That's great. Why are we exporting them? Don't
divert into other avenues.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: With what I control and what we con‐
trol.... We control what we do in this country, and we stand up for
the best. We're working on global treaty negotiations so that we can
move away from plastic waste globally and—

David Bexte: Where does most of the plastic waste hit the
oceans? What part of the world?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I do not have that global piece, as to
which part of the world, but we have the world's longest coastline,
so we would have real issues from coast to coast to coast.

David Bexte: It's all about the introduction of plastics to the en‐
vironment. Most of that happens in Asia.

I still don't have an answer to the question, though. Why is it
okay for Canada to export these materials for consumer use in other
countries but we can't use them here at home?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: We are domestically doing what we can to
protect our own environment.

● (1150)

David Bexte: Then why enable other countries to pursue the use
of a toxic product?
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Hon. Julie Dabrusin: My hope is that through global plastics
treaties we're actually going to move the world away from—

David Bexte: Then why not stop exporting? That would con‐
tribute to your goals.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: First, common goals for all Canadians are
to not have plastics washing up on our shores and to not have them
in our green spaces.

David Bexte: You're telling me that it's okay for plastic to fall in‐
to or be dumped into Milk River in Montana and flow into Alberta.
That's okay, because it's okay to export it to the United States.

It still shows up on our shores. I'm trying to understand the
hypocrisy of the changes.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I feel that the hypocrisy is in having the
Conservatives finally turn around and cheer that we actually have
taken action on reducing plastic waste.

David Bexte: I wouldn't call this cheering.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I would hope that you would start cheer‐

ing, sir, because I think it's important for us.
David Bexte: Let's change topics here a little bit.

Do you believe that Canada should be an energy superpower?
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: Absolutely.
David Bexte: The reason I ask is that I have heard directly from

Canadians and energy leaders, and I have read recent reports in The
Globe and Mail suggesting that while your government talks about
Canada being an energy superpower, its policies are sending very
mixed signals to investors. We're still not seeing investment in en‐
ergy industries as required to achieve that. We still don't see
pipelines to all three coasts needed to achieve that aim.

What are you doing to enable that?
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: In this budget implementation act, we

have a clean electricity ITC that actually will be—
David Bexte: The scalability of clean electricity is not anywhere

close to the opportunities in nuclear and in oil and gas.

In order to truly become an energy superpower—
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: There isn't a pathway—
David Bexte: What are you doing for the easiest, best, lowest-

hanging fruit?
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: It's so interesting, though, because the

clean manufacturing tax credit, I believe, does help nuclear. Our
major projects include the Darlington nuclear plant.

David Bexte: I understand that.
Hon. Julie Dabrusin: We have also put in place, through our

Major Projects Office's referrals, clean electricity through the wind
west project.

These are opportunities. Offshore wind is a huge opportunity for
our country, so we are absolutely able to be an energy—

David Bexte: That's not exportable power, though. That's not the
definition of an energy superpower. It is exportable power—

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: That is actually not what those
provinces—

Eric St-Pierre: I have a point of order.

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I think the Atlantic provinces would dis‐
agree with you on that.

The Chair: Mr. St-Pierre.

Eric St-Pierre: On a few occasions, there has been pretty loud
discussion. I think we can all hear each other quite well, so I would
just ask that we maybe calm our voices. I don't have as loud a voice
as some other members, but just be mindful.

Thank you.

The Chair: Thank you. It's noted.

Let's be joyful.

Talking about joy, Mr. Fanjoy, go ahead.

Bruce Fanjoy (Carleton, Lib.): Thank you.

It's noteworthy that my esteemed Conservative colleagues were
talking about security. I think it's worth pointing out, and I thank
the minister for pointing out, the disconnect between their words
and their deeds.

First of all, addressing climate change is a national security mat‐
ter. Second, their leader is unique among leaders of all federal par‐
ties in Parliament in not having his top security clearance, a subject
on which I have recently sponsored a petition. The initiator of the
petition is a Canadian in the riding of Carleton, a retired member of
the RCMP who in his career specialized in national security investi‐
gations.

Carol Anstey: I have a point of order, Chair.

This is important work. We get the minister for a very limited
amount of time. I don't understand how this is relevant to the work
of this committee. It's highly political. It's taking up time when the
minister is here and could be addressing some real concerns related
to the work of this committee. I don't appreciate the banter.

I would just ask that we return to the important work of the com‐
mittee.

Bruce Fanjoy: I have a point of order, Mr. Chair.

It was my esteemed—

An hon. member: Her point of order has to be answered by the
chair.

Bruce Fanjoy: I have my own point of order.

The Chair: Can it be answered by the member?

● (1155)

Bruce Fanjoy: I'm speaking to the committee through the chair.
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The Chair: Before you do your point of order, can you respond
to her point of order? Do you have a response to it?

Is that the way it works?
Ellis Ross: No, that's not how it works.
The Chair: Do you want me to decide on the point of order? Is

that what you're asking the chair? You didn't ask the chair, so I fig‐
ured—

Ellis Ross: That's what a point of order is, isn't it?
The Chair: Well, yes and no. It depends—
Carol Anstey: I can address it through the chair; that's not a

problem.

Chair, I don't see the relevance. I think it's political banter, and
there is important work this committee has to do. I'm just asking
what it has to do with the work of this committee, given the fact
that the minister is here. We've requested several times that she
come. She is finally here, and now this is just a back-and-forth that
the Liberal member wants to have.

That's all.
The Chair: Your comment is noted. I understand where you're

coming from. I was also once sitting on that side and raising those
kinds of comments, and made many other comments that were rele‐
vant or not.

I just need to highlight that when each member is asking ques‐
tions, they can ask the question they prefer to ask or make the com‐
ments they prefer to make.

As to the debate about whether there is relevance or not, he is re‐
ferring to the comments at the beginning of your questioning, actu‐
ally, which were with respect to security, so there's a fine line right
there.

Carol Anstey: He is talking about a petition coming out of his
riding, and we're talking about Chinese EVs. I don't see the rele‐
vance, Chair.

The Chair: Well, there is—
Carol Anstey: With all due respect, I just—
The Chair: —no direct relevance, but there is common ground

with respect to security, with respect to issues, and I guess he's go‐
ing to explain that. I'm not the one who can explain that.

Carol Anstey: He can present his petition. There are levers
available to him to present his petition on the floor of the House of
Commons. I don't know why he's burning up committee time talk‐
ing about a petition out of his riding.

The Chair: Maybe you can ask him the question and we can get
an answer to that.

Carol Anstey: I have to address him through the chair.
The Chair: You can ask the question through the chair. I'll allow

it if you want, on free time.

Would you like to respond to that? You had a point of order as
well.

Bruce Fanjoy: Yes. First of all, I'd like to request my time back.

The Chair: Your time has been stopped, so don't worry about
that.

Bruce Fanjoy: I would also like to note for the committee that it
was my esteemed colleague from Newfoundland who brought up
security earlier in this session. The issue is security, and I'm making
the point that addressing climate change is a matter of national se‐
curity. Perhaps it's the greatest matter of national security, as we see
impacts all across the nation, including in her riding and in many of
our ridings.

Ellis Ross: You're conflating the issue.

We were talking about the EV mandate in relation to what the
minister is here for. This is a security issue for EV mandates around
the world. Now you're talking about petitions and you're talking
about our leader and everything else. Now you're trying to twist it
into the security of the national climate crisis.

We're supposed to be here on behalf of our membership and our
ridings. These are important questions—I agree with you on that
point—but this is not for our political interests, our parties or our
leaders; it's for the people of Canada in terms of where our country
is going. Conflating the issue is not helping.

Eric St-Pierre: I have a point of order.
The Chair: Mr. Ross, do you want me to respond to you, or do

you want—
Ellis Ross: Yes, through the chair, of course, because I'm not

clear on that.
The Chair: Who would you like a response from, me or the

member?
Ellis Ross: The member.
The Chair: Before I let the member speak, I just want to note

that we've already put five minutes on this. If we're talking about
time with the minister, I want to bring you all back to the reality
that she'll be leaving some time shortly. I understand that this is an
important issue. I don't want to steer it in any direction, but I want
to bring us to reality with respect to time.

Mr. Fanjoy, the floor is yours to respond to Mr. Ross's point of
order.

Bruce Fanjoy: Unless I'm mistaken, my time is my time to use
as I see fit.

I understand that this is an issue that makes my Conservative col‐
leagues uncomfortable. They should be uncomfortable about it. The
petition, which was launched less than a week ago and which was
initiated by an individual in the riding of Carleton who had a career
in national security investigations, already has over 34,000 signa‐
tures. This is a matter that is of great interest to people not just in
Carleton, but all across the country. We have people signing from
across the country.

Minister, I congratulate you for calling out that hypocrisy.
● (1200)

The Chair: Mr. Fanjoy, I'll bring you back to your time.
Bruce Fanjoy: Thank you.

Minister, thank you very much for joining us today.
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Since administrative and equivalency agreements will no longer
be automatically renewed after five years, how will the government
make sure that environmental protection standards do not weaken
and that they continue to reflect the best available science?

Hon. Julie Dabrusin: I want to clarify that one of the challenges
we have right now is that we have a five-year hard stop and then we
have to start renegotiating. You don't start renegotiating at five
years; you start renegotiating before that. It means that there's this
constant cycle of negotiating.

The most important piece—if I was going to talk about how
equivalency works and why it's important—is to get the same out‐
come. The whole point is to get to the same outcome. In fact, that's
strengthened in the wording of this BIA. What happens now is that
there is a longer timeline that can be applied to that. In some indus‐
tries, especially, it might make more sense to have that longer time‐
line.

When we talk about climate competitiveness, this is at the centre
of what we're talking about. We are working co-operatively with
the provinces and territories to make sure we can build the econo‐
my of the future. As you said, climate is a national issue for so
many reasons. I've said this before. We might be there because we
care deeply about the future we're going to give to our children, as
we should, but it is also an economic imperative.

That's what's so frustrating, when I see a bill like this being ob‐
structed, because there are opportunities in this bill for clean tech‐
nology investment tax credits in electricity that would help us build
more interties and help build out the backbone of the clean econo‐
my future for our country. There are also other investment tax cred‐
its in here for manufacturers that will expand and create more of
those opportunities. Because of the obstruction we've been facing,
we can't move these forward. We really need to move past the ob‐
struction that we've seen and actually be able to put forward these
really important climate-focused tax credits that are also economi‐
cally important to our country.

I believe we have everything it takes to have the strongest econo‐
my and a low-carbon economy future, but if the Conservatives keep
holding us back from being able to move in that direction, they're
not just holding back our future on reducing emissions, but they're
holding back our economic capability. That's going to impact work‐
ers in all of our communities.

If we all want that bright future, and I think we do, with good-
paying jobs, by reducing emissions so that we have cleaner air in
our communities and by reducing the impact of natural disasters....
We hope to have a future where our homes are heated in a way that
is cheaper, because we're using electricity, heat pumps and solar
panels, etc. That future of being able to get around in electric vehi‐
cles that are cheaper to maintain and are cheaper in day-to-day use,
all of that, is a brighter future for our country. We just need to move
past the Conservative obstruction and get to the point where we can
have it.

The Chair: I would like to thank the minister for her presence.

We will suspend for the next panel.

Thank you.

● (1200)
_____________________(Pause)_____________________

● (1210)

The Chair Mr. Bexte, you start first with a big six minutes.
You've lost a minute already, but it's okay.

David Bexte: Thank you for round two, witnesses. I appreciate
your time today. We'll endeavour to be a little more calm.

Provinces like Alberta have demonstrated that the industrial car‐
bon pricing system, such as the TIER program, with a 100,000-
tonne threshold and free credit markets, can reduce emissions while
maintaining competitiveness and flexibility for smaller facilities.

Why does your department's discussion paper propose constrain‐
ing these proven provincial systems, increasing compliance costs
and eliminating free credit markets? The notion of going down to a
10,000-tonne threshold especially is going to capture a lot of facili‐
ties.

● (1215)

Megan Nichols (Assistant Deputy Minister, Environmental
Protection Branch, Department of the Environment): Thanks
very much for the question.

Certainly, the discussion paper was put out in December and re‐
cently the comment input period closed. We're just in the process of
reviewing all that input. At the same time, we've been talking to
provinces, territories and stakeholders to get their views.

The very intent of the discussion paper is to solicit input on the
parameters for an updated carbon pricing benchmark. Carbon pric‐
ing is a pillar of our approach to climate change, but there's a
recognition that it could be working more effectively in terms of
making sure that it's actually incentivizing the investments in decar‐
bonization that are intended.

We are seeking input on what the appropriate threshold is. The
one thing that is different is that when the fuel charge was in place,
all facilities were subject to some kind of carbon price, whether it
was the fuel charge or industrial pricing. It's really about making
sure that industrial pricing continues to cover a broad range of
emissions.

David Bexte: The question at hand, then, is what the prescriptive
range is.

I have some trouble with the notion of equivalency agreements.
It's about clarity and making sure that we're maximizing economic
opportunity to generate wealth for the nation and trying to meet an
objective. If the objective is made clear for a province or jurisdic‐
tion to pursue, then stay out of it, as long as they're meeting their
objectives. I have some concern, then, that there's a push to go to
smaller facilities.
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I'm wondering if you can best estimate how many facilities
would be impacted in Alberta and Saskatchewan by going from
100,000 tonnes to 10,000 tonnes.

Megan Nichols: I don't have those numbers in front of me, but
we can provide that. We've kind of looked at what it would mean
for 10 kilotons, 25 kilotons and 50 kilotons, just so we have that
full picture.

David Bexte: Do you have granular data, like company names
and locations of plants?

Megan Nichols: I'm not sure we have that level of data, but we
do have an idea of numbers, so we can certainly provide that.

David Bexte: I would really like the granular data, so that we
can understand what geographic impact it will have and what sector
impact it will have.

I have some more questions about the mechanics of this. In the
absence of an automatic expiry, what will the process be for ad‐
dressing changes to the agreement by one or both parties? Is it just
a notice period? At the five-year expiry, you had to renegotiate and
you could take into account changes in circumstance, which would
be incorporated. How is that going to happen now?

Stephanie Lane (Executive Director, Legislative Governance,
Department of the Environment): The statutory changes to the
Canadian Environmental Protection Act will simply remove the
five-year mandatory time frame. There were already protections in
the act that set out a series of steps that the government had to take
in advance of finalizing an equivalency agreement and making an
equivalency order, which stands down the provisions of a CEPA
regulation. Those agreements are negotiated with provinces and ter‐
ritories. In some cases, that five-year or six-year time frame, or any
sort of time frame, might be appropriate, and that would be includ‐
ed in the agreement.

The agreements also include provisions that speak to a mandato‐
ry review period and things like that. Those provisions about how
the parties will come to an agreement—

David Bexte: In the regulations, then, there are review periods
and opportunities to institute changes.

Stephanie Lane: They are in the agreements themselves, yes.
David Bexte: Will Parliament receive regular updates, or will

there be public reporting of progress or of these things happening?
Stephanie Lane: The act requires a pre-publication prior to en‐

tering into an equivalency or an administrative agreement, and it re‐
quires those agreements to be published as well. Then there is a
regulatory process specifically for equivalency agreements, where‐
by those are published on the laws page under the Canadian Envi‐
ronmental Protection Act.

David Bexte: How can the provinces be confident that there
won't be mission creep or that there won't be a step toward federal
override rather than genuine equivalency? Who's the arbiter if
there's a dispute, if a province is claiming that they have perfor‐
mance and they're meeting these objectives and the federal govern‐
ment maybe thinks differently?
● (1220)

The Chair: Give a short answer, please.

Stephanie Lane: The agreements must be negotiated between a
province and the federal government in order for there to be an
equivalency agreement and for the agreement to stand down.

The Chair: Thank you very much.

[Translation]

Mr. St‑Pierre, the floor is yours.

[English]

Eric St-Pierre: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'd like to share my time with the member for Saanich—Gulf Is‐
lands, if you will permit.

The Chair: Who goes first?

Eric St-Pierre: I'll go first. I'll do three minutes, and then the
member will go second.

[Translation]

Equivalency agreements, which are at the heart of the bills we're
considering today, require strong collaboration between the federal
and provincial governments. Earlier, the minister spoke about her
efforts to maintain dialogue with the provinces. Can you give us
some examples of your interactions with your provincial counter‐
parts on this issue?

Stephanie Lane: I'll answer the question in English. I think it'll
be easier for me.

[English]

There are existing equivalency agreements in place with Alberta
with respect to methane, and with other provinces. For those agree‐
ments, whenever a new regulation is in place, there's always an op‐
portunity to negotiate an equivalency agreement if the provisions of
the act are met. An equivalency agreement, as the minister men‐
tioned, can be entered into where equivalent regulations or equiva‐
lent laws are enforced in a province or territory or aboriginal gov‐
ernment jurisdiction, and where there are provisions that are equiv‐
alent to the investigation provisions under CEPA as well.

In cases where there are those provisions in a provincial law, the
federal government can negotiate an agreement under certain regu‐
lations under CEPA, the Canadian Environmental Protection Act,
and those regulations would be stood down in that particular juris‐
diction.

[Translation]

Eric St-Pierre: My next question is about tax credits.

Bill C–15 includes measures to increase investments in clean en‐
ergy or renewable energy projects, a sector which constitutes a
blind spot in the Conservatives' strategy.

Can you take 30 seconds to talk about these tax measures and the
positive impact they would have on the Canadian economy?
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Alison McDermott (Assistant Deputy Minister, Strategic Poli‐
cy and International Affairs Branch, Department of the Envi‐
ronment): The climate competitiveness strategy announced in the
budget confirms and strengthens a number of these investment tax
credits. In particular, it confirms the implementation of the clean
electricity tax credit and the expansion of eligibility for the clean
technology and clean technology manufacturing tax credits, among
other changes.

Eric St-Pierre: Thank you.
[English]

I'll pass the rest of my time to the member for Saanich—Gulf Is‐
lands.

Elizabeth May: Thanks, Eric.

I know the minister didn't have time to answer my question be‐
fore, so I'm going to dig into this again.

Under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, we've typi‐
cally had chief review officers. They can issue compliance orders
and such. They've been under various acts, which is why, in om‐
nibus fashion, those acts are all being amended to accommodate the
creation of the Environmental Protection Tribunal.

I'm trying to understand why the department put this in an om‐
nibus bill. Does it require more of our care and attention in terms of
knowing why a new tribunal is being created, and the nature of that
tribunal?

Stephanie Lane: Thank you for the question.

The amendments MP May is describing are in division 32 of part
5 of the budget implementation act. Those amendments are purely
administrative. The Environmental Protection Tribunal has been
operating as such under the federal identity program of the Trea‐
sury Board Secretariat since 2019. Since that time, there's been an
agreement with the administrative tribunals support service of
Canada to provide administrative services to the Environmental
Protection Tribunal of Canada.

The amendments—and it is a series of quite a few—are, in
essence, to formalize the existence of the Environmental Protection
Tribunal of Canada in CEPA and switch the name of “chief review
officer” or “review officer” to “board member” of that tribunal.
They are purely administrative changes. The responsibility of the
review officers and the chief review officers is not changing. They
are currently able to review compliance orders and administrative
monetary penalties issued by enforcement officers, who are em‐
ployees of Environment and Climate Change Canada. They have
certain powers to adjust those compliance orders or administrative
monetary penalties. Those authorities are not changing. The powers
are not changing.

In essence, this will allow the Environmental Protection Tribunal
of Canada to continue operating, and for there to be clarity. It has
been operating as such since 2019.
● (1225)

The Chair: Thank you.
Elizabeth May: Was that all of the three minutes?
The Chair: I gave you a little more.

Elizabeth May: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
The Chair: All right.

[Translation]

Mr. Bonin, you have the floor for six minutes.
Patrick Bonin: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I want to go back to section 596.

What was the purpose of the five-year limit that had been set for
the agreements? Also, in your opinion, what is the impact of abol‐
ishing this limit? There used to be one, but now there isn't. We're
trying to understand why.

Stephanie Lane: As the minister said, the five-year term has
been around for a while. Removing this duration is intended to al‐
low agreements to continue to operate and to reduce the administra‐
tive burden in situations where modelling or other factors indicate
that the equivalency agreement can last longer.

Patrick Bonin: Wouldn't it be preferable, for example, to in‐
crease the term from five years to 10 years, or even 15 years?

Stephanie Lane: With regard to the duration of the agreements,
it will be on a case-by-case basis. The appropriate duration will re‐
ally depend on the regulations or legislation in effect in the
province. It may be that the five-year term is appropriate for certain
types of instruments. However, the federal government thought it
would be preferable to have the flexibility to negotiate the time lim‐
it with the province.

Patrick Bonin: Under the current wording, who can terminate
an equivalency agreement? Do both parties have to agree?

Stephanie Lane: Yes. According to the current wording, agree‐
ments automatically expire after five years, but you can also termi‐
nate an agreement with three months' notice. This provision re‐
mains in the act, despite the proposed changes, so that doesn't
change.

Patrick Bonin: Shouldn't it be specified that either party could
put an end to it?

Stephanie Lane: I'll just take a look at the act's current wording
to answer the question.

The current act says: “l'accord prend fin sur préavis de trois
mois”. In English, it says that the notice may be given “by either
party”. So either party can do it.
● (1230)

Patrick Bonin: Okay. So each party can do it.

Is it clear that the agreement would end if it were no longer
equivalent?

Stephanie Lane: In the section that talks about why you can en‐
ter into equivalency agreements, the only change in the test is that
“provisions that are equivalent” become “provisions that are equiv‐
alent in effect”.

[English]

I'm going to switch to English. I'm sorry.
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The agreements will likely include provisions that speak to the
maintenance of equivalency over the life of the agreement, and they
will likely include review provisions by either party to ensure that
the requirements of the act may continue.
[Translation]

Patrick Bonin: What difference does it make to write “provi‐
sions that are equivalent in effect” instead of “provisions that are
equivalent”?

Stephanie Lane: It doesn't change anything. For agreements that
have already come into force, this test has already been used. That's
the test in the Fisheries Act as well. So we just wanted to codify the
current practice.

Patrick Bonin: Would there be any downside to specifying in
the wording that the agreements would end as soon as they were no
longer equivalent? You say it would be in the agreement, but why
not specify it in the act itself?

Stephanie Lane: I can't speak to the policy behind that or
whether that would be a good idea. It's up to the government to de‐
cide whether that's something that should be changed. However, the
act states quite clearly that this is the test for having an equivalency
agreement. So I don't know if it will change much.

Patrick Bonin: I want to go back to something. The minister
mentioned that the Alberta‑Canada agreement would strengthen the
fight against climate change and further reduce emissions. That is a
key element in the budget. At least, the climate competitiveness
strategy is.

Do you have any documentation on the agreement that shows
how it will affect the country's greenhouse gas reduction forecasts?

Alison McDermott: At the moment, we're not about to be able
to quantify the impact of this agreement on emissions, particularly
because we still need to have discussions and reach specific agree‐
ments. We know that there are a few areas where Alberta's agree‐
ments would be very important. For example, the fact that it has
agreed to participate in—
[English]

The Chair: Thank you.

I have a little note before we go to the next member.

When you're speaking into the mic, you don't need to push the
button on or off. Staff here will do it for you automatically.

Mrs. Anstey, the floor is yours for five minutes.
Carol Anstey: Thank you, Chair.

Given that the minister appeared, and we were all very disap‐
pointed that she didn't answer any questions with respect to the
hypocrisy in the plastics policy, I'd like to move a notice of motion:

That the committee undertake a study, pursuant to Standing Order 108(2), of at
least two meetings, on the federal government's plastic manufacturing policy,
specifically that Canada will permit the manufacturing of straws and other plas‐
tic goods in Canada but only for export to the United States; that the committee
invite the Minister of Environment and Climate Change, and any other witnesses
appropriate to this study to appear before it; and that the committee report its
findings and recommendations to the House.

Chair, it's obvious that there's a glaring contradiction, and we'd
like answers, especially given that we've been pretty focused on a

food affordability crisis that we think is a Canadian-made crisis. We
know that alternative products are more expensive right now. We
don't understand why these products are deemed illegal as soon as
they go across the border. It doesn't seem to make a lot of sense.
Therefore, we think it would be important to get answers to these
questions.

● (1235)

The Chair: Thank you, Ms. Anstey.

Mr. St-Pierre.
Eric St-Pierre: I have a point of order.

I always have Mr. Leslie's voice in my head. Unfortunately, he's
not here today—not physically, but virtually. I just want to remind
members that I believe we have only 22 days left from now until
June. Time is limited, and we have some other important studies.

I'm struggling a little with the relevance of the motion. We would
like to take a moment and suspend, though, just to review, and then
come back in a few minutes, please.

The Chair: We'll suspend.

● (1235)
_____________________(Pause)_____________________

● (1240)

The Chair: We're back.

Mr. Grant, go ahead.
Wade Grant (Vancouver Quadra, Lib.): Mr. Chair, before we

resume debate, I don't think we have much time, so I'm just won‐
dering if everybody around the table is okay with dismissing the
witnesses. I don't think we're going to get back to them.

The Chair: Just to get a clearer understanding, there's really no
debate because....

The Clerk of the Committee (Leif-Erik Aune): Ms. Anstey
gave oral notice.

The Chair: Ms. Anstey only gave oral notice. Is that correct?

Carol Anstey: Yes.

The Chair: It's not something we can finalize right now. Is that
correct?

The Clerk: No, we can't, unless there's unanimous consent of
the committee to debate the motion.

Ms. Anstey has not moved a motion, nor has she requested to
move a motion. She has given oral notice.

Carol Anstey: I requested to move a motion. Yes, I did.
The Clerk: I thought she said oral notice.
Carol Anstey: No, I requested to move a motion.
The Chair: That's not what we understood at the beginning. I'm

sorry.
The Clerk: All right. That takes unanimous consent.
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The Chair: That takes unanimous consent, then.

Do we have unanimous consent to move the motion? Shall I give
you another minute or two to figure this out? Okay.

We will suspend.
● (1240)

_____________________(Pause)_____________________

● (1240)

The Chair: I'm sorry for the confusion.

I'll ask the clerk to resume so that we can get a better understand‐
ing of what was done, what is being done and where we're going.
This way everything can be cleared up and we can move forward.

Mr. Clerk.
The Clerk: Ms. Anstey, just to clarify, is the motion that you

moved the one for which you gave notice last week? It was regard‐
ing plastics.

Carol Anstey: That's correct.
The Clerk: That's my mistake. I apologize for my confusion.
The Chair: Okay. Are we ready for debate?

Mr. Grant, you were saying something about our guests. We were
ready to let them go, since we're going to be moving into debating
this motion. Is that unanimous?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Chair: I'd like to thank our guests for being here today. I
would say “the officials”, but they are guests.

You are now free to go.

Mr. Bexte, I see your hand was up first. Go ahead.
David Bexte: Thank you, Chair.

I would implore everybody, all the members of the committee, to
support this motion. It's important that we understand if there are
inconsistencies in process or inconsistencies in regulation that can
lead to the perception of hypocrisy. It puts efforts by our enterprises
at odds with each other. We want to avoid counterproductivity by
design. Further to this, it allows us to investigate if there were gaps
because of oversight in how it was connected and to pursue looking
for unintended consequences.

I absolutely implore that we support this motion.
The Chair: Go ahead, Mr. St-Pierre.
Eric St-Pierre: If we can make amendments, would you allow

an amendment to the motion?
David Bexte: It's the will of the committee and the members.
Eric St-Pierre: I'd move an amendment to the language around

“at least two meetings”. I'm just very mindful that we have about
20 or so meetings left until summer, and two on this topic, out of 20
meetings, would be 10% of our meetings.

We have the study on the industrial carbon price, which we know
is one of the most effective climate mitigation policies. According
to the Canadian Climate Institute, it's the number one policy to re‐
duce our emissions, and the Canadian Climate Institute is very

credible. We've had this study continuously being pushed over, so
I'm very mindful of the amount of time this study will take.

It will further delay the industrial carbon price study—for which,
by the way, you have submitted a long list of witnesses and the
Bloc has submitted a long list of witnesses, and so have we. I think
there's a lot of interest in that topic. We might not all agree on the
policy framework, but I think there's strong interest there. I'm just
concerned that this study here will take some valuable time.

I'm sorry; I think I learned from wise MPs such as Mr. Leslie
about the limited amount of time we have in committees and how
things move. Yes, that's right; I did call him wise, and that's on the
record. I will compliment him. He does have certain wisdom, so I'll
give him that.

I'm just mindful about the two days. I'd bring an amendment to
bring the two days down to just one hour. I think we can do this in
one hour, a half-day. That's my amendment.

● (1245)

The Chair: Are you moving this amendment?

Eric St-Pierre: That's correct. I'm moving an amendment to
change the wording from two meeting days to one half of a meeting
day.

The Chair: Is there debate on that?

Before I get there, based on how the motion was written, the
clerk is saying that there's no official time frame as to when this
should be coming. It will not displace anything else before the end
of the session.

I'm reading the motion. It can be when we come back in Septem‐
ber. It won't be before September. That's just to be clear on that.

We're going to debate the amendment now.

Bruce Fanjoy: I have a point of order.

Can you remind the committee who makes the decision and how
the decision is made as to what order we follow in our studies? I
think this is an important matter.

The Chair: I'll refer this question to the clerk.

The Clerk: The committee has authority to plan all of its busi‐
ness. In the absence of any explicit decision by the committee, the
chair is also empowered in his administrative role to give instruc‐
tion.

As a matter of course, I prepare a calendar of the committee's
program of activity that is distributed to all members. If ever there's
an activity planned or proposed for a date and there is no decision
by the committee or instruction from the chair, then it says “not
confirmed” at the top, so it's within the committee's power to deter‐
mine the schedule of its own activities.

I hope that answers your question, sir.
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Bruce Fanjoy: Just for further clarification, is the default order
“first in, first out”? If a study has already been agreed upon by the
committee, it would take precedence over any additional studies.
They would get into a queue. Is that correct?

The Clerk: I don't take a default approach when it comes to the
committee's planning of activities. If the committee agrees to un‐
dertake a new activity, then I will consult with the chair at the earli‐
est opportunity to determine a good time to schedule a new study.

The Chair: Thank you.

Now we're back to the debate on the amendment: from two days
to half a day.

Mrs. Anstey.
Carol Anstey: I'd be happy to meet in the middle and say one

meeting. I think that would be fair.
[Translation]

Patrick Bonin: I would agree to at least one meeting.
[English]

The Chair: We have consensus to bring it from two days to one.

Is that good?
Eric St-Pierre: I think in politics we could show collaboration.

This is meeting halfway.
The Chair: We'll vote first on the amendment to change it from

two meetings to one meeting.

(Amendment agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: Now we'll go back to the initial motion as amended.

I have Mrs. Miedema.
Shannon Miedema: Thank you.

We'd like to propose another amendment to the language of the
motion.

I'm not sure how best to say this in a clear way. The first sen‐
tence reads, “That the committee undertake a study, pursuant to
Standing Order 108(2)...on the federal government's plastic manu‐
facturing policy”. We would strike out “the federal government's
plastic manufacturing policy” and replace it with “the implementa‐
tion and impacts of the single-use plastics prohibition regulations,
as well as the suspension of Ottawa's export ban on single-use plas‐
tics”.

I think that's just accurate language for those pieces of work, and
then we'd say—
● (1250)

The Chair: Before we go forward, can you repeat what you've
just suggested so the clerk can write that down and we'll have a bet‐
ter way to figure it out?

Shannon Miedema: Yes, and I think we can also provide this in
writing for everyone to review once I've said it.

The Chair: You want to read it all out first and then give it to us
after.

Shannon Miedema: Is that okay?

The Chair: Sure.

Shannon Miedema: Okay.

We're just replacing it with the technical terms of those two
pieces, and then saying, after the semicolon, “that the study take in‐
to account the scientific evidence that shows that plastic pollution
poses a threat to the environment”, and then striking out “specifi‐
cally that Canada will permit the manufacturing of straws and other
plastic goods in Canada but only for export to the United States”.
We are striking that.

I guess the other one is a separate amendment, so I'll stop there
for that one. I know it's confusing to read it out, so we can show the
amendments in writing, unless you like it and it's fine already.

The Chair: All right. For the sake of the clerk, so that he'll be
able to finalize this part of the amendment, can you reread it slowly
so he can make the corrections and we can proceed with the admin‐
istrative tasks to said amendment?

Shannon Miedema: Okay. I'm going to read it from the top.

It will say, “That the committee undertake a study, pursuant to
Standing Order 108(2), of one meeting, on”, and then we strike out
“the federal government's plastic manufacturing policy” and re‐
place it with “the implementation and impacts of the single-use
plastics prohibition regulations as well as the suspension of Ot‐
tawa's export ban on single-use plastics; that the study take into ac‐
count the scientific evidence that shows that plastic pollution poses
a threat to the environment”. Then we would delete “specifically
that Canada will permit the manufacturing of straws and other plas‐
tic goods in Canada but only for export to the United States” in full.
That gets struck.

Thank you.

The Chair: Colleagues, do you need the clerk to send you that?
Do you want him to reread it before we go to debate?

You're all good.

Mr. Bonin.

[Translation]

Patrick Bonin: I think I understand, but I would like to propose
a subamendment to ensure that—

The Chair: Excuse me, Mr. Bonin, but before we deal with a
subamendment, we'll finish this.

Patrick Bonin: Okay.

A voice:He said he wanted to amend the amendment.

The Chair: Mr. Bonin, do you want to amend the amendment?
Is that what you want to do?

Patrick Bonin: Yes.
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The Chair: Go ahead.
Patrick Bonin: The subamendment would add, after “single use

plastics prohibition regulations”, the words, “as well as the suspen‐
sion of the government's export ban on single use plastics”.

The Chair: Can you repeat that?
Patrick Bonin: After “single use plastics prohibition regula‐

tions”, the subamendment would add the words, “as well as the sus‐
pension of the government's export ban on single use plastics”.

The Chair: What you just said, Mr. Bonin, is already covered at
the beginning of the amendment.

If I may, I'll let the clerk read it to you slowly. That will give you
a better idea.
● (1255)

Patrick Bonin: I thought it had been crossed out.
The Chair: No, it hadn't been crossed out, but just to be sure,

we'll let the clerk repeat the amendment to you.
Patrick Bonin: Okay.
The Chair: Mr. Clerk, can you read the amendment?

Unfortunately, it will be in English, but you will hear the inter‐
pretation.
[English]

The Clerk: The motion as amended would read as follows:
That the committee undertake a study, pursuant to Standing Order 108(2), of one
meeting, on the implementation and impacts of the single-use plastics prohibi‐
tion regulations as well as the suspension of Ottawa’s export ban on single-use
plastics; that the study take into account the scientific evidence that shows that
plastic pollution poses a threat to the environment; that the committee invite the
Minister of Environment and Climate Change, and any other witnesses appropri‐
ate to this study to appear before it; and that the committee report its findings
and recommendations to the House.

[Translation]
The Chair: I think we can strike the subamendment then.

[English]

Is there debate on the amendment?

Mr. Fanjoy.
Bruce Fanjoy: To clarify, the amendment refers to Ottawa's ban

on single-use plastic exports. Ottawa is a municipality. We don't
have a ban.

This is just a point of clarification. We need to refer to the federal
government's ban and not Ottawa's. It's a common misconception
that the two are equivalent. They are not.

The Chair: Are there any comments with respect to Mr. Fanjoy's
comments?

Can we get more clarification as to what it should read? Is it “the
government” instead of “Ottawa”?

Bruce Fanjoy: Yes, it's the federal government. “Ottawa”
doesn't belong in the amendment.

The Chair: Are there any further comments with respect to the
amendment? Is there any further debate?

(Amendment agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: Is there a further amendment?

Wade Grant: After that, where it says, “that the committee in‐
vite”, strike “the Minister of Environment and Climate Change, and
any other”. It would read, “that the committee invite witnesses ap‐
propriate to this study to appear before it; and that the committee
report its findings and recommendations to the House.”

The Chair: Is there any debate?

Mr. Bexte.

David Bexte: Respectfully, after today, the minister has to be
there. To get to the nub of the matter and to get an unequivocal re‐
sponse on how this is going to be implemented, what the connota‐
tions are and what the unintended and intended consequences are, it
has to come from the minister's mouth, full stop.

Further to all of that—maybe this refers to other parts of the pre‐
vious amendment—if the government is suddenly getting urgent
about the time, the timeline and our shortening schedule with the
summer coming, the parliamentary schedule is by and large fully in
the government's hands. The number of sitting days has been set by
the government, and we could have been sitting a lot more days to
get work done, so it's a bit of a fallacy to go down that road.

Anyhow, the minister needs to be there to answer to us. We're not
going to have adequate answers from bureaucrats.

Thank you very much.

● (1300)

The Chair: Mr. St-Pierre.

Eric St-Pierre: It's not debate, but a comment. I would appreci‐
ate an acknowledgement of how generous the minister has been
with her time. I'd like a respectful acknowledgement of the minis‐
ter, who's been present at our committee many times. It's not an
amendment, but looking for an acknowledgement.

Ellis Ross: Yes, I acknowledge the comment made by my col‐
league. She's been generous with her time, but not generous with
her answers. I think that's probably the rub. We're not getting spe‐
cific answers to specific questions. There's a countercomment.

The Chair: Okay.

Monsieur Bonin.

[Translation]

Patrick Bonin: Mr. Chair, I am aware that the minister's time is
precious, as is ours, of course. However, when it comes to this deci‐
sion, obviously it's a political decision. The minister answered
some of the questions today. I don't want us to waste her time, but
suspending this ban seems inconsistent to me. We're the committee
the minister reports to, so it is part of her mandate and her job to
come and explain decisions. We're talking about plastic, which is a
major issue.
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The Chair: Thank you.

We don't have a lot of time left, so we'll go to a vote on the
amendment proposed by Mr. Grant about the minister's presence.

(Amendment negatived)
The Chair: Now we'll go to the vote on the motion as amended.

[English]

(Motion as amended agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: We will now proceed to the following item, which is
with respect to the study of Bill C-15. I would like to thank all
members for collaborating in doing this brief study.

Shall the committee now proceed to amendments and recommen‐
dations or resume the study at the next meeting of the committee or
report back to the finance committee with respect to Bill C-15?

There are no recommendations with respect to Bill C-15. We can
report back to the finance committee.

Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Chair: We will report back to the finance committee what
we've completed today vis-à-vis the study of Bill C-15.

Next, do we have any recommendations to give the analysts re‐
garding drafting instructions on the EV study?

Monsieur Bonin.
[Translation]

Patrick Bonin: I'll be brief.

We do have recommendations, but I propose that we email them,
if possible.

The Chair: I'm getting confirmation that you can do that.

Mr. St‑Pierre, you have the floor.
● (1305)

Eric St-Pierre: Maybe I'll do the same thing, because I have
several pages, and I don't want to take up too much time, or we'd be
here until 6 p.m. There are recommendations on electric vehicle
subsidies and incentives for zero-emission vehicles. I may have
some recommendations on research infrastructure as well.

The Chair: Okay.

Mr. Ross, you have the floor.
[English]

Ellis Ross: All the recent announcements regarding EV rebates
as well as subsidies should be included in the draft report.

The Chair: Is there anything else?

Analysts, you have another toy to play with.

Last but not least, I want to keep you updated on our agenda. I
don't think this report will be ready by the time we return on Febru‐
ary 24. Since this report will not be available, the analysts will give
us a rough idea, on our return, when this report on the EV study
will be ready.

As for February 24, we will do committee business. It will be on
the emissions reduction plan report, which was distributed on
February 3. That's the ERP study.

Is that good? That's for February 24.

To also put you in the loop for what's happening upon our return,
on February 26, we will have our last day of the other study.
[Translation]

The committee will resume its study on protecting Canadian resi‐
dents from extreme weather events.
[English]

We will finish Ms. Miedema's study, and we have witnesses for
that day.

I guess that on February 24, we will figure out what we will be
doing in the weeks after.

Is that all good for members?

I wish you all a good, restful week with family, friends and con‐
stituents, but most importantly, with yourself. Take some time, have
a drink or two, but don't drive.

Don't forget: It's Valentine's Day, so let's make our spouses very
happy. I wish you all a happy St. Valentine's Day.

The meeting is adjourned.
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production or use is not in accordance with this permission.

La présente permission ne porte pas atteinte aux privilèges,
pouvoirs, immunités et droits de la Chambre et de ses
comités. Il est entendu que cette permission ne touche pas
l’interdiction de contester ou de mettre en cause les délibéra‐
tions de la Chambre devant les tribunaux ou autrement. La
Chambre conserve le droit et le privilège de déclarer l’utilisa‐
teur coupable d’outrage au Parlement lorsque la reproduc‐
tion ou l’utilisation n’est pas conforme à la présente permis‐
sion.

Also available on the House of Commons website at the
following address: https://www.ourcommons.ca

Aussi disponible sur le site Web de la Chambre des
communes à l’adresse suivante :

https://www.noscommunes.ca


